MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

OF THE

UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS

October 16, 1919

When the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois met at the Blackstone Hotel, in Chicago, at 11 o'clock a. m. on Thursday, October 16, 1919, pursuant to the adjournment taken on October 4, 1919, the following members were present: President Carr, Mr. Abbott, Mrs. Blake, Mrs. Busey, Mrs. Evans, Mr. Herbert, Mr. Trimble, Mr. Ward.

Acting President Kinley was present.

MINUTES APPROVED .

The Secretary presented for approval the minutes of the meetings of August 15, September 9, and October 4, 1919; and for record the minutes of the meetings of the Executive Committee of August 15 and October 4, 1919.

On motion of Mr. Abbott, the minutes were approved and received for record as printed on pages 501 to 594 above.

MATTERS SUBMITTED BY PRESIDENT KINLEY

The Board considered the following matters submitted by Acting President Kinley.

ALUMNI RECORD FOR SCHOOLS IN CHICAGO

(1) A request for authority to compile and publish an Alumni Record of the colleges of Medicine and Dentistry and the School of Pharmacy.

On motion of Mr. Abbott, the Acting President was authorized to proceed with this publication and to submit an estimate of the expense at the next meeting of the Board.

GIFT FOR LOAN FUND FOR GIRLS

(2) A statement that Mrs. Dora E. Biddle, of Macon, Illinois, had given Liberty Bond No. 1,181,092, third series, due 1928, amount \$1,000, interest rate 4½%, coupons of September 15, 1919, and March 15, 1920, attached, as a donation to the University, principal and interest to be used to establish a loan fund for girls. The Acting President recommended that this gift be accepted, that the bond be sold and the proceeds be utilized for the purposes of the donor, that the administration of these loans be in the hands of the Council Committee on Student Loan Funds, and that the regulations be those now applied in the case of the Margarethe Lange James Loan Fund.

On motion of Mrs. Evans, these recommendations were approved and Acting President Kinley was requested to express to Mrs. Biddle the thanks of the University.

DEATH OF PROFESSOR CYRIL GEORGE HOPKINS

(3) An announcement of the death of Professor Cyril George Hopkins, head of the department of Agronomy, at Gibraltar, on October 6, 1919.

October 14, 1919

Acting President David Kinley, University of Illinois My DEAR PRESIDENT KINLEY:

As you know, our associate and friend, Dr. Hopkins, senior member of the Agricultural faculty, died in the British Medical Hospital at Gibraltar, on October 6, of malaria contracted while in the discharge of his work in Greece. The work was undertaken by Dr. Hopkins partly as an opportunity for rendering service to a warstricken people, and partly to increase his knowledge of an experience with exhausted soils in order that he might the better advise the State of Illinois in the care of its lands.

Dr. Hopkins literally gave his life to his work. He has been cut off at the untimely age of fifty-three, in the period of his highest usefulness but not before he had fairly earned the title of the world's greatest authority on the problems of soil fertility as developed by the critical study of millions of acres of various soil types which, under his direction, were subjected to survey and exhaustive study both by field and laboratory methods.

He was the originator of the idea of feeding lands what they need in order to supply to the growing crops the limiting element of plant food as determined by actual chemical analysis, instead of applying fertilizers made by fixed formulae and containing, in the vast majority of cases, materials already plentiful or, as in the case of nitrogen, prohibitive in expense. His plan also opposed the extensive use of acidulated fertilizers, not only because of the doubling of weight and freight charges, but also because of the unsatisfied acid fatal to the bacteriological growth.

This plan for an agriculture that should be not only productive but also profitable and permanent was bitterly opposed by scientist of the old school and also by powerful interests having heavy investments in raw materials, particularly in sulphuric acid, but with no scientific basis for conducting sales according to the natural needs of land.

The soil survey conducted by Dr. Hopkins supplied the necessary basis for recommending effective soil treatment; and against all opposition, Dr. Hopkins gradually won his way and proved his sytem sound by the uniform results of many years' experiments carried out on more than forty fields located on the different types of Illinois soils. This plan for providing a permanent agriculture has been more widely and more quickly adopted by the farmers of Illinois, that has any new doctrine ever been put into practise in an equal length of time, and the results of his able and untiring labors are now assured to the State for which his first thought has always been.

Very truly yours,

E. DAVENPORT

On motion of Mr. Abbott, the following resolutions were adopted.

The Board of Trustees have heard with extreme sorrow of the sad death of Professor Cyril George Hopkins, a member of the faculty of the University in the College of Agriculture, at Gibraltar.

Words fail to express the sense of loss which all members of the University feel at Professor Hopkins's death. His death leaves a great gap not only in our University faculty, but in the community

in the scientific world, and in education.

The Board of Trustees therefore desires to put on record its deep sympathy with Mrs. Hopkins in her great loss, and its appreciation of Professor Hopkins's greatness as a man, a teacher, and a scholar. We will have to search far before we find a successor who will fill so worthily the large place that he has occupied in our local, state, and national affairs.

PROFESSOR HOPKINS HALF SALARY CONTINUED TO MRS. HOPKINS

On motion of Mrs. Busey, the Comptroller was instructed to pay to Mrs. Hopkins at the rate of one half of Professor Hopkins's salary, or \$2,750, until September 1, 1920.

REPORT OF RECENT FIRE

(5) A letter from the Comptroller reporting that on Wednesday, October 1, at 1:45 p. m. a small fire occured on the third floor of the flat building at 1756-58 West Polk Street, Chicago, now being used as a tenant property. The fire was confined to a closet and the damage estimated by our superintendent in Chicago is \$15.00. Settlement has been made on this basis by McKey and Poague for the insurance companies holding the policies on this building.

This report was received for record.

SUGGESTED NAMING OF WOMAN'S RESIDENCE HALL

MCKINLEY HOSPITAL

(6) A suggestion by the present occupants of the Woman's Residence Hall that the building be given a name.

No action was taken in this matter.

MCKINLEY HOSPITAL

(7) A report of progress on the plans for the McKinley Hospital.

On motion of Mr. Ward, a special committee, composed of Mr. Carr, Mr. Abbott, and Mrs. Blake, was appointed to consider this matter and to report at the next meeting of the Board.

At this point, at 1 p. m., a recess was taken, for luncheon.

AFTERNOON SESSION, OCTOBER 16, 1919

When the Board convened on the afternoon of October 16, 1919, after the recess, the same persons were present as at the morning session.

The Board continued its discussion of matters submitted by Acting President Kinley.

AMERICAN COUNCIL OF EDUCATION AMERICAN UNIVERSITY UNION IN EUROPE

(8) A request for authority to take membership on behalf of the University in the American Council of Education or the American University Union in Europe.

On motion of Mr. Ward, the Acting President was authorized to take a membership in either organization or in both, as might seem desirable.

CONSTITUTIONAL STATUS OF THE UNIVERSTY

(9) A statement showing the provisions made in various state constitutions for the maintenance of the state universities, with a request for a statement of the opinion of the Board as to what measures should be taken on behalf of the University during the coming Constitutional Convention in Illinois.

This matter was discussed at length, but no action taken.

PROPOSED AFFILIATION OF SCHOOL FOR NURSES

(10) A request from a school for nurses in Chicago that the school be made an affiliated organization of the University.

On motion of Mr. Trimble, this matter was referred to Acting President Kinley for investigation and report.

EMPLOYMENT OF CONSULTING ARCHITECTS

President Carr reported that in pursuance to an action of the Board (page 503) he had engaged the firm of Holabird and Roche to act as consulting architects on the plans for the McKinley Hospital, the Horticulture Building, and the general development of the campus.

On motion of Mr. Trimble, this action was approved.

STATISTICAL SURVEY OF PROBABLE DEVELOPMENT

Mrs. Blake presented a proposal from Mr. Warren P. Laird. of the University of Pennsylvania, to make a statistical survey of the probable development of the University, and to come to this University for a preliminary conference.

On motion of Mr. Ward, it was voted to request Mr. Laird to come to the University for a conference, with the understanding

that the University undertakes no obligation in the matter except to pay Mr. Laird's traveling expenses for this trip. The vote was as follows: Ayes: Mr. Abbott, Mrs. Blake, Mrs. Busey, Mr. Carr, Mrs. Evans, Mr. Herbert, Mr. Trimble, Mr. Ward; noes, none; absent, Mr. Blair, Mr. Hoit, Mr. Lowden.

APPOINTMENTS TO FILL VACANCIES

The Secretary presented for record the following list of appointments made by Acting President Kinley:

Adams, E. W., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for nine months, beginning Ocotober 1, 1919, at a salary of thirty dollars (\$30) a month. (October 3, 1919)*.

Ahern, Roma, Nurse in the University Hospital, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month, beginning October 3, 1919, and continuing until further notice. (October 8, 1919).

Albrecht, P. G., Associate in Physiological Chemistry in the Department of Physiology and Physiological Chemistry in the College of Medicine, from October 1, 1919, to September 1, 1920, on one-half time, at a salary of eight hundred fifty dollars (\$850) a year, plus tuition and fees. (October 1, 1919).

Allen, Marie T., Assistant in Mathematics, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of four hundred dollars (\$400) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Amos, Winifred, Secretary to the High School Visitor, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month, beginning September 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 8, 1919).

Andrews, J. H., Assistant Bursar in the Business Office, at a salary of twelve hundred dollars (\$1,200) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 3, 1919).

Appelle, C. G., Assistant in Physiology in the department of Physiology and Physiological Chemistry in the College of Medicine, for eleven months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of six hundred dollars (\$600) a year. (September 22, 1919).

Arnold, Rossleene M., Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of twelve hundred dollars (\$1,200) for the period. This appointment superseding her previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Baker, Inez E., Dispensary Nurse in the College of Medicine, at a salary of one thousand twenty dollars (\$1,020) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 6, 1919).

Beach, F. H., Auditor in the Business Office, at a salary of nineteen hundred dollars (\$1,900) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commissiou. (October 3, 1919).

Bence, Era, Instructor in Piano in the School of Music, for ten months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of twelve hundred dollars (\$1,200) for the period. (October 6, 1919).

Blain, W. L., Assistant in Botany, from September 29, 1919, to June 30, 1920, on one-half time, at a salary of sixty dollars (\$60) a month. (October 3, 1919).

Bollman, J. L., Assistant in Physiological Chemistry in the Department of Physiology and Physiological Chemistry in the College of Medicine, from October 1, 1919, to August 1, 1920, on one-half time, at a salary of five hundred dollars (\$500), plus tuition and fees for the period. (October 1, 1919).

^{*}The date in parenthesis is the date on which the appointment was made by the Acting President of the University.

Bradley, C. G., Assistant Mechanician in the Mechanical Engineering Laboraory for eleven months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of eighty-five dollars \$85) a month. (October 1, 1919).

Brownfield, Lelah, University Stenographer, Rank III, in the department of Animal Husbandry, in the College of Agriculture, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 7, 1919).

Burke, Kathleen, Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of thirty dollars (\$30) a month. (October 3, 1919).

Buswell, Constance A., Assistant in English, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of twelve hundred dollars (\$1,200) for the period. (October 3, 1919).

Bysack, B. N., Student Clerk in the Catalog Department of the Library, for twelve months, on one-half time, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of thirty dollars (\$30) a month. (October 6, 1919).

Castle, R. D. V., Assistant Purchasing Agent in the Business Office, at a salary of sixteen hundred dollars (\$1,600) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 3, 1919).

Christopher, Muriel, Stenographer in the School of Music, at a salary of sixty-five dollars (\$65) a month, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 6, 1919.

Clutter, O. R., Instructor in Physiological Chemistry in the Department of Physiology and Physiological Chemistry in the College of Medicine, from October 1, 1919 to September 1, 1920, on one-half time, at a salary of five hundred fifty dollars (\$550), plus tuition and fees for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Crecraft, G. R., Assistant in English, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of twelve hundred dollars (\$1,200) for the period. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 3, 1919).

Dawson, R. H., Student Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of ten dollars (\$10) a month. (October 1, 1919).

Dolch, E. W. Jr., Assistant in English, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) for the period. (October 3, 1919).

Dorjahn, J. A., Laboratory Assistant in the department of Pharmacy and Pharmacognosy in the School of Pharmacy, for eight months, beginning at once, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month. (October 8, 1919).

Edington, W. E., Assistant in Mathematics, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of seven hundred dollars (\$700) for the period. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Farber, J. A., Student Assistant in Chemistry, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of ten dollars (\$10) a month. (October 7, 1919).

Fautsch E., Student Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of ten dollars (\$10) a month. (October 1, 1919).

Flock, Marguerite, University Stenographer, Rank III, in the Department of Animal Husbandry in the College of Agriculture, at a salary of seventy-five dollars (\$75) a month, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 7, 1919).

Frederick, Nora E., Instructor in Anatomy in the department of Anatomy in the College of Medicine, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, on one-half time, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month. (October 1, 1919).

Gillespie, J. E., Instructor in History, for one year, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) for the year. (October 1, 1919).

Glasgow, Josephine B., Instructor in Mathematics, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of seven hundred fifty dollars (\$750) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Gray, H., Laboratory Helper in the Department of Geology, at a salary of seventy-five dollars (\$75) a month, beginning October 6, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 6, 1919).

Greenfield, R. E., Assistant in Chemistry, for nine months, on one-half time, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of six hundred thirty dollars (\$630) for the period. (October 2, 1919).

Griesmer, W., Assistant in Mathematics, from October 6, 1919, to July 1, 1920, on part time, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month. (October 6, 1919).

Hanson, J. E., Student Assistant in Chemistry, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of ten dollars (\$10) a month. (October 7, 1919).

Hawkins, J. A., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Hebbert, C. M., Instructor in Mathematics, from September 29, 1919, to July 1, 1920 at a salary of one hundred eighty dollars (\$180) a month. (October 1, 1919).

Hogue, Clara M., Assistant in English, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of thirteen hundred dollars (\$1,300) for the period. (October 3, 1919).

Honey, E. E., Assistant in Botany, from September 29, 1919, to June 30, 1920, on one-half time, at a salary of sixty dollars (\$60) a month. (October 3, 1919).

Ingalls, H. B., Bursar in the Business Office, at a salary of eighteen hundred dollars (\$1,800) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 3, 1919).

Ingersoll, A. W., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Johnson, J. R., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919.)

Keeton, R. W., Associate in Pharmacology and Therapeutics in the Department of Pharmacology, Materia Medica and Therapeutics in the College of Medicine, for eleven months, on four-fifths time, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of eighteen hundred dollars (\$1,800) a year. This appointment superseding his previous appoint ment. (September 22, 1919.)

Kelso, Ruth, Instructor in English, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Klank, Genevieve O., Stenographer in the Office of the Assistant Dean of the College of Engineering, on one-half time, at a salary of forty dollars (\$40) a month, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 1, 1919).

Knollin, E. R., Assistant in the department of Physical Education of Men, for nine months, one one-half time, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of sixty dollars (\$60) a month. (October 6, 1919).

Kustermann, W. W., Associate in Mathematics, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of two hundred dollars (\$200) a month. (October 6, 1919).

Langley, W. D., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Leisy, Elva K., Assistant in English, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, on part-time, at a salary of eighty dollars (\$80) a month. (October 2, 1919).

Lincicome, A., Clerk in the Bursar's Office of the Business Office, at a salary of one thousand dollars (\$1,000) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 3, 1919).

Lougee, Flora M., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Lyon, W. R., Graduate Assistant in Electrical Engineering, for four months, on one-half time, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of fifty dollars (\$50) a month. (October 6, 1919).

Manley, E. J., Instructor in Swimming and Manager of Intramural Athletics in the Department of Physical Education for Men, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of eighteen hundred dollars (\$1,800) for the period. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 6, 1919).

Mavis, Della, Nurse in the University Hospital, at a salary of one hundred ten dollars (\$110) a month, beginning September 23, 1919, and continuing until further notice. (October 1, 1919).

Meakin, Genevieve L., Artist in the Department of Anatomy in the College of Medicine, from October 1, 1919, to August 1, 1920, on one-half time, at a salary of fifty dollars (\$50) a month. (October 6, 1919).

Messinger, Hariett, Student Clerk in the Binding Department of the Library, for eleven months, on one-half time, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of thirty dollars (\$30) a month. (October 2, 1919).

Middleton, E. B., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of thirty dollars (\$30) a month. (October 3, 1919).

Moore, J. J., Assistant Professor of Pathology and Bacteriology in the College Medicine, for one year, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of twenty-nine hundred dollars (\$2,900) for the year. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Murbach, Hazel E., Technician in the department of Histology in the College of Medicine, for one year, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of nine hundred sixty dollars (\$960) for the year. (October 6, 1919).

Nadeau, O. E., Instructor in Anatomy in the Department of Anatomy in the College of Medicine, from October 1, 1919, to July 1, 1920, on one-half time, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Newman, Margaret J., Stenographer in the Engineering Experiment Station, at a salary of seventy dollars (\$70) a month, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 1, 1919).

Palmisano, D. A., Technician in Chemistry in the Department of Physiology and Physiological Chemistry in the College of Medicine, from October 1, 1919, to September 1, 1920, at a salary of nine hundred dollars (\$900) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Perreault, Jacqueline E., Dispensary Clerk in the College of Medicine, at a salary of six hundred sixty dollars (\$660) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 6, 1919).

Perry, Winifred A., Assistant in English, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) for the period. (October 2, 1919).

Porter, P. K., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Reed, Cordelia, Assistant in Romance Languages, for ten months, beginning at once, at a salary of one thousand dollars (\$1,000) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Reinsch, B. P., Assistant in Mathematics, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of seven hundred dollars (\$700) for the period. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Rolfe, Deette, Assistant in Chemistry, for four months, beginning October 1, 1919 at a salary of one hundred twenty dollars (\$120) a month. (October 6, 1919).

Rosenbach, J. B., Assistant in Mathematics, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of seven hundred (\$700) for the period. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Saunders, H. P., Assistant in Physiology in the Department of Physiology and Physiological Chemistry in the College of Medicine for eleven months, on one-half time, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of six hundred dollars (\$600) a year. (September 22, 1919).

Schneider, R. F., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Schricker, O. W., Assistant Superintendent of the Machine Shop, from October 1, 1919, to August 31, 1920, at a salary of one hundred fifty-eight and one-third dollars (\$158.33) a month. (September 30, 1919).

Segur, J. B., Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of three hundred dollars (\$300) for the period. (October 1, 1919).

Steimley, L. L., Assistant in Mathematics, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of seven hundred dollars (\$700) for the period. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Stiritz, B. A., Assistant in Dairy Manufactures in the department of Dairy Husbandry in the College of Agriculture and the Agricultural Experiment Station, for one year, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of twelve hundred dollars (\$1,200) a year. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 8, 1919).

Stubbs, Sadie L., Executive Clerk in the President's Office, at a salary of one hundred thirty-three and one-third dollars (\$133.33) a month, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 1, 1919).

Thayer, F. K., Assistant in Chemistry, for ten months, on one-half time, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of six hundred dollars (\$600) for the period. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Tracy, G., Instructor in Physiological Chemistry in the Department of Physiology and Physiological Chemistry, in the College of Medicine, from October 1, 1919, to September 1, 1920, at a salary of sixteen hundred four dollars and seventeen cents, (\$1,604.17) for the period. (October 6, 1919).

Tullock, W. M., Chief Traffic Clerk in the Business Office, at a salary of sixteen hundred dollars (\$1,600) a year, beginning October 1, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 3, 1919).

Vance, E. H., Assistant in Mathematics, for one year, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of twelve hundred dollars (\$1,200) for the year. (October 1, 1919).

Wahlen, F. G., Assistant in Mathematics, for five months, beginning September 1, 1919, at a salary of one hundred dollars (\$100) a month. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 1, 1919).

Walker, Katherine, Technician in the Department of Pathology and Bacteriology in the College of Medicine, from October 2, 1919, to September 1, 1920, at a salary of seven hundred twenty dollars (\$720) a year. (October 8, 1919).

Wellman, T. O., Bookkeeper in the Bursar's Office of the Business Office, at a salary of nine hundred dollars (\$900) a year, beginning October 8, 1919, and continuing until further notice; subject to the rules of the Civil Service Commission. (October 8, 1919).

Wiggins, Inez, Instructor in English, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of fourteen hundred forty dollars (\$1,440) for the period. (October 3, 1919).

Wilgus, W. Q., Assistant in English, for nine months, beginning October 1, 1919, at a salary of fourteen hundred (\$1,400) for the period. (October 3, 1919).

Wilson, L. A., Associate in Experimental Mechanical Engineering, from October 1, 1919, to September 1, 1921, at a salary of twenty-two hundred dollars (\$2,200) a year. This appointment superseding his previous appointment. (October 3, 1919).

The Board adjourned, to meet at the University, in Urbana, at 9 o'clock a. m., on Saturday, November 1, 1919.

URBANA, ILLINOIS, November 3, 1919

I certify that in the foregoing pages, numbered 595 to 604, inclusive, is contained the record of the transactions of the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois at the meeting held on October 16, 1919, as approved by the Board on November 1, 1919.

Secretary of the Board of Trustees